


JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. n is Court has subject matterjurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. jj 1331, 1337(a),

and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. jj 45(a), 53(b), and 5R .

3. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. j 1391(b) and (c) and 15 U.S.C.

û 5309.

PLAINTIFF

4. The FTC is an independent agency of the United States Government created by

statute. 15 U.S.C. jj 41-58.'I'he FTC enforces Section 5(a) of the FTC Ad, 15 U.S.C. j 45(a),

which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting comm erce. The FTC also

enforces the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. jj 6101-6108. Pursuant to the Telemarketing Act,

the FTC promulgated and enforces the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, which prohibits deceptive and

abusive telem arketing acts or practices.

n e FTC is authorized to initiate federal district court proceedings, by its own

attomeys, to enjoin violations of the FTC Act and t



Sterling Precious M etals has advertised, marketed, or sold precious metals investments to

consumers throughout the United States.

At times material to this Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others,

Defendant Kerry Marshall (çtMarshall'') has formulated, directed, controlled, had the authority to

control, or pM icipated in the acts and practices of Sterling Precious M etals, including the acts

and practices set forth in this Complaint. M rshall resides in this district and, in connection with

the matters alleged herein, transacts or has transacted business in this district and throughout the

United States. Marshall holds himself out as a member of Sterling Precious M etals and has held

himself out as a broker with the company. M arshall is also a sipaatory on Sterling Precious

M etal's financial accounts and receives and responds to consumers' complaints and inquiries.

8.

member of Sterling Precious M etals. At times material to this Complaint, acting alone or in

concert with others, he has fomwlated, directed, conkolled, had the authority to control, or

pm icipated in the acts and practices of Sterling Precious Metals, including the acts and practices

Defendant Matthew Meyer (çtMeyeP') has been an owner and a managing



Complaint. Zofay resides in this district and, in connection with the matters alleged herein,

transacts or has transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. Zofay is

responsible for supervising employees. Zofay has sir ed legal documents on behalf of the

company. He is a sir atory on Sterling's financial accounts and receives and responds to

consumers' complaints and inquiries.

COM M ERCE

At a11 times m aterial to this Com plaint, D efendants have m aintained a substantial

course of trade in or affecting commerce, as ttcomm



value within a short time period.ln fact, precious metals prices are volatile and Defendants

cannot reasonably predict precious metals prices.

14. Defendants assure consumers, many of whom are investing their retirement

savings, that precious metals have a low or minimal risk of loss. Defendants tell consumers that

precious metals are a safe investment. Defendants also advise consumers that they do not trade

options or risky futures contracts, but instead only trade tangible, physical assets, such as bars,

bullion, and coins. n ese statements made to consumers are consistent with the Defendants'

telemarketing script. which specifically states, $tW e don't trade options or risky futures contracts.

W e deal only with tansble, physical assets- in this case, bars, bullion and coins.''

15. Aher leading consumers to believe that the offered precious metals investments

are lucrative and safe, Defendants fail to clerly d



$200. In addition, Defendants generally tell consumers that 15% of the money that consumers

have apeed to pay to Defendants will be applied as a commission, when, in fact, Defendants

charge 15% of the total costs of consumers' precious metals purchase - including the leveraged

portion of the transaction. ln many instances, this results in consumers paying as much as 39%

of their investments in commissions.

18. Defendants ohen fail to clearly inform consumers that they are likely to receive

equity calls on their accounts, which will require consumers to invest additional money to keep

their precious metals from being liquidated.

19. After listening to Defendants' telemarketing pitch and expressing interest in

purchasing precious metals investments, Defendants tell consumers to send money to purchase

the precious m etals investm ent.

20. Aher sending money to Defendants, consumers generally receive a risk

disclosure statement and sometimes also a contract. Such documents, however, fail to

adequately disclose to consumers the significant costs and risks associated with the precious

m etals investm ents.

21. The majolity of consumers who purchmse precious metals from Defendants lose

money. Consumers' equity in their precious metals i



consum er must either invest additional m oney or allow the precious metals to be liquidated at a

loss, making the investments risky. In some instances, consumers' accounts are liquidated

without notice to consum ers.

VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT

23. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. j 45(a), prohibits ttunfair or deceptive acts

or practices in or affecting comm erce.''

M isrepresentations or deceptive om issions of m aterial fact constitute deceptive

acts or practices prohibited by Section 5(a) of the FTC Act.

COUNT I

M isrepresentations in Violation of Section 5

25. ln num erous instances, in connection with the m arketing, offering for sale, or sale

of precious metals, Defendants, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, make material

representations, including that;

(a) Consumers are likely to earn high or substantial protks in a short time

period on the precious metals sold by Defendants; and

(b) n e precious metals sold by Defendants are 1ow or minimal risk

investm ents.

26. In truth and in fact, in numerous instances in which Defendants make the

representations set forth in Parapaph 25 of this Complaint:

(a) Consumers are not likely to earn high or substantial profits in a short time

period on the precious metals sold by Defendants', and

(b) n e precious metals sold by Defendants are not low or minimal risk

investm ents.
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27. n erefore, Defendants' representations as set forth in Parapaph 25 are false and

misleading and eonstitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,

15 U.S.C. j 45(a).

COUNT 11

Failing to Adequately Disclose M aterial Inform ation in Violation of Section 5



1994. On August 16, 1995, the FTC adopted the Telemarketing Sales Rule (the trri/nal

TSR''), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, as subsequently amended.

32. Defendants are ttsellerlsl'' or tçtelemarketerEsl'' engaged in tçtelemarketing,'' as

defined by the TSR, 16 C.F.R. j 310.2(aa), (cc), and (dd).

33. Defendants have initiated tloutbound telephone calls'' on behalf of persons who

are içsellers,'' as those terms are detined in the TSR, 16 C.F.R. j 310.2(v) and (aa).

34. n e TSR applies to inbound telephone calls - telephone calls initiated by a

consumer - in response to an advertisement relating to investment opportunities. 16 C.F.R. j

310.6(b)(5).

35.

implication, in the sale of goods or services, any material aspect of an investment opportunity

n e TSR prohibits sellers and telemarketers from misrepresenting, directly or by

including, but not limited to, risk, liquidity, eamings potential, or profitability. 16 C.F.R. j

310.3(a)(2)(vi).

36.

tnzthfully, in a clear and conspicuous manner, and before a customer pays for goods or services:

(a) The total costs to purchase, receive, or use, and the quantity of, any goods



unfair or deceptive act or practice in or affecting commerce
, in violation of Section 5(a) of the

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. j 45(a).

COUNT III

M isrepresene g an Investm ent O pportunity

38. ln numerous instances, in connection with the telemarketing of precious metals
,

Defendants, directly or indirectly, expressly or by



Failing to Clearly and Conspicuously to Disclose M aterial Conditions

42. ln num erous instances, in cormection with the telemarketing of precious metals,

Defendants fail to disclose truthfully, in a clear and conspicuous manner, before a customer pays



Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. j 6105(b), authorize this Court to pant such relief as the Court

tinds necessary to redress injury to consumers resulting from Defendants' violations of the TSR
,

including the rescission or refonnation of contracts, and the refund of money.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
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